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Ways and Means Committee meeting 
There was a Ways and Means Committee meeting to discuss the 2015 Appropriations 
prior to the Council meeting. This session began at 6:00 p.m. in Council Chambers. 

 
Public Hearing 

A Public Hearing was held at 6:30 p.m., Monday, March 09, 2015 in the City of 
Zanesville’s Council Chambers, 401 Market Street, Zanesville, OH. 
  
Mr. Vincent: It is now 6:30 p.m. so let’s call this Public Hearing to order. This is a public 
hearing as requested by Dutro Real Estate LLC for the vacation of small undocumented 
right-of-ways near 5th and South Streets and at the rear of 400 South Street in 
downtown Zanesville. With that, I will turn this over to Mr. Pat Denbow, Zoning 
Administrator for the City of Zanesville. 
 
Mr. Denbow: Thank you very much. If you remember from one of the last requests that 
came through for Dutro for alley vacations we mentioned that there were going to be a 
couple of pieces coming forward that weren’t discovered until after the process had 
already started on the last one. So the applicant is requesting the vacation of two small 
right-of-ways that were discovered after the previous request for the alley vacations. 
The first is a right-of-way that is located in the southwest corner of the intersection of 
Fifth and South Streets. This right-of-way is not part of the improved portion of either 
street. In fact, it has been a part of the Dutro lot for many years. The second right-of-
way is a ten foot undocumented alley which appears to have been partially vacated 
many years ago. This alley is located to the south of the City Records’ building at 400 
South Street. This right-of-way is currently used as a parking area.  
 
Under reconstructed development Dutro Dealership is currently undergoing major 
expansion and redevelopment of this area. These vacations are the last pieces of the 
puzzle to be vacated for this development. Access to abutting properties; the right-of-
way at the intersection of Fifth and South is not currently utilized as access for any 
properties. The alley right-of-way is currently utilized to access the City parking area. 
This vacation would grant most of this alley to the City while Dutro Real Estate would 
receive half of the eastern portion of the alley. This vacation should not affect traffic flow 
to the parking lot necessary for future development. It is the staffs’ understanding that 
this request is critical for the future development of the Dutro project and under future 
plans allow for a public utility easement. The Public Service Department has determined 
any utilities that are within these right-of-ways and any utilities that will not be relocated 
will have to have a utility easement. Staff had no objections to the request. The 
Planning Commission is recommending approval of the vacation. The Ordinance you 
received does ask for it to be passed as an emergency. This is due to the timing of their 
project so their construction crew can get in and get work started prior to the road 
construction season that they are going to be heavily involved with. If there are 
questions on that I am sure Mr. Cole Graham can help with those questions.  
 
Mr. Vincent: Are there any questions for Mr. Denbow? 
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Mr. Tarbert: The ten foot easement is currently used for parking? 
 
Mr. Denbow: The ten foot alley? 
 
Mr. Tarbert: Yes. 
 
Mr. Denbow: Actually the lot that you see on the plat that is owned by the City of 
Zanesville on the south side. That is where the parking lot is. 
 
Mr. Tarbert: Ok. 
 
Pat Denbow: Part of the access into that lot runs through the alley.  
 
Mr. Tarbert: So the alley is not used for parking, it is just an access into the parking lot. 
 
Pat Denbow: Right and the City will retain most of it after this vacation. 
 
Mr. Tarbert: Are there any other bordering properties on any of these other than the City 
and Dutro?  
 
Pat Denbow: No.  
 
Mr. Tarbert: That is all I have. Thank you. 
 
Mr. Vincent: Is there anything else from Council? This may just be a repeat but to be 
perfectly clear, with this as proposed, it is not going to limit any access to the City 
property or cause any problems for City property? Correct? 
 
Pat Denbow: That was our determination.   
 
Mr. Vincent: Is there anything else from Council? Is anyone here to speak for or 
against? 
 
Mr. Cole Graham: I can answer any questions if you need me to on the Dutro side. 
 
Mr. Vincent: We have Mr. Cole Graham here from Dutro if there are questions. I know 
this was presented many weeks ago. I am not sure when it was discovered, so I think 
this is helpful to have been before Council and they have seen maps in the past. So this 
is not new for Council.  
 
Mr. Cole Graham: It would be beneficial if you could include the emergency for the 
timing of our crew as we didn’t know about these until we started the due process or 
else we would have included them. 
 
Mr. Vincent: I think it was dated back in 1845 or something. 
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Mr. Cole Graham: It was 1845 maybe 1850’s. 
 
Mr. Vincent: Somebody did some hard work looking for that. Thank you, sir. If there is 
nothing else from Council or Administration I will call this public hearing to a close. 
Thank you very much.  
 
The meeting closed about 6:35 p.m. 
 
Mayor Tilton then gave his State of the City address about 6:36 p.m. 

 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING – MONDAY, March 09, 2015 

 
The Council of the City of Zanesville met in regular session at 7:00 p.m. on Monday, 
March 09, 2015 in the City Council Chambers, 401 Market Street, Zanesville, Ohio. 
 
Mr. Vincent led those present in the Lord’s Prayer and the Pledge of Allegiance to the 
Flag. 
 
The following members of Council answered Roll Call:  Mr. Hutcheson, Mr. Roberts, Ms. 
Gildow, Mr. Foreman, Mrs. Gentry, Mr. Tarbert, Mrs. Norman, Mr. Sharrer, and Mr. 
Vincent. Mr. Baker was absent. 
 
Mr. Roberts moved to excuse Mr. Baker and it was seconded by Mr. Tarbert. A voice 
vote was held with all present in favor of excusing Mr. Baker. Mr. Baker was absent. 
Motion carried. Mr. Baker stands excused. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES   
 
Mr. Vincent: We are now at approval of the minutes of February 23, 2015. 
 
Mr. Sharrer moved to make a slight correction on page 11 of 12, six lines up from the 
bottom, the second to the last word, instead of interrupt I would like that to read 
interpret. It was seconded by Mr. Tarbert.  
 
Mr. Vincent: Is everyone clear on where that is located? Is there any discussion? All in 
favor of changing the minutes to read interpret instead of interrupt signify by saying aye. 
Voice vote with all in favor. None were opposed. 
 Motion carries. 
 
Mr. Vincent: We are now at the minutes from February 23, 2015 as corrected. I will 
entertain a motion to accept the minutes. 
 
Mr. Hutcheson moved to accept the minutes as printed with the amended version, 
seconded by Mr. Tarbert.  
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Mr. Vincent: Is there any further discussion? A voice vote was held with all present in 
favor. Mr. Baker was absent. 
 Motion carries. The minutes stand approved as corrected. 
 
COMMUNICATIONS, REPORTS, AND RESOLUTIONS 
 
Resolution No. 15-29 – Introduced by Council – A Resolution of support for the Ohio 
Development Services Agency (ODSA) Appalachian Assistance Line Item.  
 
Mr. Vincent:  We are at first reading. 
 
Mr. Roberts moved for first reading, seconded by Ms. Gildow. 
 
Mr. Vincent:  Is there any discussion?   
 
Mr. Tarbert: Mr. Bennett is there any urgency to this? 
 
Mr. Bennett: I would say if we could move it forward we could send it over to  
OMEGA and then on up to the State House.  
 
Mr. Vincent: With that, Mr. Tarbert, we do need a correction as far as this is a 
Resolution and down at the bottom of the first page under Section Two it does refer to 
"This Ordinance" and it should say "This Resolution". 
 
Mr. Tarbert moved to amend this Resolution 15-29 in Section Two to say "This 
Resolution" instead of "This Ordinance". Mr. Sharrer seconded the motion. 
 
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion on the correction?  
 
Jay Bennett: Another correction on page one “Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved”. 
 
Mr. Tarbert: I will amend my motion to include that "Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved” 
instead of Ordained.  
 
Mr. Vincent: Mr. Tarbert wants to amend Section Two from "This Ordinance" to "This 
Resolution" and up above "Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved".  
 
It was seconded by Mr. Sharrer. 
 
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion? All in favor of those two amendments signify by 
saying aye. All present were in favor of the amendments. Mr. Baker was absent. 
Motion carries.  
 
Mr. Vincent: We are now at Resolution 15-29 as amended. 
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Mr. Tarbert moved to waive the three readings and pass as normal legislation. It was 
seconded by Mr. Sharrer.   
 
Mr. Vincent:  Is there any discussion on waiving of the readings?  Hearing none, we will 
have roll call vote on waiving of the readings. 
 
Roll call vote on waiving of the readings. 
8 Ayes 
0 Nays 
1 Absent Mr. Mark Baker 
Motion carries.   
 
Mr. Vincent:  I now need a motion for passage. 
 
Mr. Roberts moved for passage, seconded by Ms. Gildow. 
 
Mr. Vincent:  Is there any further discussion?  Hearing none, we will have roll call vote 
for passage. 
 
Roll call vote for passage. 
8 Ayes 
0 Nays 
1 Absent Mr. Mark Baker 
Motion carries.  Resolution is passed. 
 
PROPOSED ORDINANCES 
 
Mr. Vincent: We are now at Proposed Ordinances-Ordinance 15-30. 
 
Mr. Sharrer: I move to add Ordinance 15-34 as presented to Council as Item 5A under 
Proposed Ordinances on the agenda. Mr. Tarbert seconded the motion.  
 
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion? Hearing none, all in favor of adding Ordinance 15-
34 under Item 5A signify by saying aye. A voice vote was held and all present were in 
favor. Mr. Baker was absent. 
Motion carries. 
 
Ordinance No. 15-30 – Introduced by Council – An Ordinance approving a Labor 
Agreement with Local #1573, Council #8, American Federation of State, County, and 
Municipal employees, and declaring an emergency.  
 
Mr. Roberts moved to waive the three readings and it was seconded by Mr. Hutcheson.   
 
Mr. Vincent:  Is there any discussion on waiving of the readings?  Hearing none, we will 
have roll call vote for waiving of the readings. 
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Roll call vote on waiving of the readings. 
8 Ayes 
0 Nays 
1 Absent Mr. Mark Baker 
Motion carries.   
 
Mr. Vincent:  I now need a motion for passage. 
 
Mrs. Norman moved for passage, seconded by Mr. Sharrer. 
 
Mr. Vincent:  Is there any discussion?   
 
Mr. Roberts: I just wanted to thank the administration for negotiating this just like they 
did the other contracts. I think we have a very balanced turn out on all of the contracts 
that were negotiated this year.  
 
Mr. Vincent: Thank you Mr. Roberts. Is there anything else from Council? We will have 
roll call vote for passage. 
 
Roll call vote for passage. 
8 Ayes 
0 Nays 
1 Absent Mr. Mark Baker 
Motion carries.  Ordinance is passed. 
 
Ordinance No. 15-31 – Introduced by Council – An Ordinance adopting an updated 
Citizens Participation Plan required for CDBG and Home funding.  
 
Mr. Vincent:  We are at first reading. 
 
Mr. Tarbert moved for first reading, seconded by Mr. Gentry. 
 
Mr. Vincent:  Is there any discussion?  Hearing none, all in favor of first reading signify 
by saying aye. All were in favor. None were opposed. Mr. Baker was absent. 
 
Motion carries. 
 
Ordinance No. 15-32 – Introduced by Council – An Ordinance authorizing the proper 
City Official to provide funds to the Transportation Improvement District Board for 
Operational Expenses.  
 
Mr. Vincent:  We are at first reading. 
 
Mr. Roberts moved for first reading, seconded by Ms. Gildow. 
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Mr. Vincent:  Is there any discussion?  Hearing none, all in favor of first reading signify 
by saying aye. Seven members were in favor.  
Mr. Tarbert abstained. Mr. Baker was absent.  
None were opposed.  
Motion carries. 
 
Ordinance No. 15-33 – Introduced by Council – An Ordinance authorizing the proper 
city official to purchase a new mow trim from Muskingum Tractor & Equipment for the 
Street Division, and declaring an emergency. 
 
Mr. Vincent: Is there a motion to waive the readings? 
 
Mr. Hutcheson moved to waive the three readings and it was seconded by Mr. Roberts.   
 
Mr. Vincent:  Is there any discussion on waiving of the readings?  Hearing none, we will 
have roll call vote for waiving of the readings. 
 
Roll call vote on waiving of the readings. 
8 Ayes 
0 Nays 
1 Absent Mr. Mark Baker 
Motion carries.   
 
Mr. Vincent:  Now I need a motion for passage. 
 
Mr. Tarbert moved for passage, seconded by Mrs. Gentry. 
 
Mr. Vincent:  Is there any discussion?  Hearing none, we will have roll call vote for 
passage. 
 
Roll call vote for passage. 
8 Ayes 
0 Nays 
1 Absent Mr. Mark Baker 
Motion carries.  Ordinance is passed. 
 
Mrs. Gentry: I would like to say that I am happy that we were able to purchase that from 
a local dealership in town. 
 
Mr. Vincent: Thank you Mrs. Gentry. We will move on to Item 5A. 
 
Ordinance No. 15-34 – Introduced by Council – An Ordinance to vacate a portion of 
right-of-way at the intersection of 5th and South Streets and an undocumented alley to 
the rear of 400 South Street in the City of Zanesville, Ohio as herein provided and 
declaring an emergency.  
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Mr. Sharrer moved to waive the three readings and it was seconded by Mr. Tarbert.   
 
Mr. Vincent:  Is there any discussion on waiving of the readings?  Hearing none, we will 
have roll call vote on waiving of the readings. 
 
Roll call vote on waiving of the readings. 
8 Ayes 
0 Nays 
1 Absent Mr. Mark Baker 
Motion carries.   
 
Mr. Vincent:  I now need a motion for passage. 
 
Mr. Roberts moved for passage, seconded by Ms. Gildow. 
 
Mr. Vincent:  Is there any discussion?  I do have a petition from Mr. Cole Graham. He is 
here and submitted it just in case Council had any questions. He has spoken to Council 
about this before and also presented during the previous legislation brought before 
Council regarding this project. So with that if Council has any questions I will invite him 
up. Is there anything else from Council? We will have roll call vote for passage. 
 
Roll call vote for passage. 
8 Ayes 
0 Nays 
1 Absent Mr. Mark Baker 
Motion carries.  Ordinance is passed. 
 
ORDINANCES FOR ACTION 
 
Ordinance No. 15-19 – Introduced by Council – An Ordinance rescinding Ordinance  
00-46.  
 
Mr. Vincent: We are at second reading. 
 
Mr. Tarbert moved for second reading, seconded by Mr. Roberts. 
 
Mr. Vincent:  Is there any discussion?  Hearing none, all in favor of second reading 
signify by saying aye. All were in favor. None were opposed. Mr. Baker was absent. 
 
Motion carries. 
 
Ordinance No. 15-20 -  Introduced by Council – An Ordinance amending Ordinance 13-
45, which provided for dual occupancy of an employment position.  
 
Mr. Vincent: We are at second reading. 
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Mr. Hutcheson moved for second reading, seconded by Mr. Tarbert. 
 
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion?  
 
Mr. Tarbert: Mr. Bennett, Mr. Case brought up that point at the last meeting. Why are 
we doing three months of training? 
 
Mr. Bennett: This specifically, on this offering, is slated more toward the reason we 
could offer; more so than the months or the time frame. The current authorization is for 
dual training. There are occasions when we may have a need to have an employee off 
while still on our books. If there is an investment into an employee that has faced an 
emergency situation and we decided to retain that employee and help them during that 
time, we could not have another person in that position while they are off. So we are 
specifically trying to get out where Council has authorized for training, there is also an 
instance where we might need to have an employee off for an emergency and we would 
need to have somebody in that position, while having two people on our payroll for that 
specific period of time. So it was specifically that, I looked at it and Council had 
previously authorized a sixty day period and I thought if somebody is going to be out 
then perhaps we could look at that for ninety.  
 
Mr. Tarbert: You may not know the answer to this. Is this something that happens 
frequently or are we talking (interrupted) 
 
Mr. Bennett: No 
 
Mr. Tarbert: Is this happening right now in the City? Has it happened three times a 
month? 
 
Mr. Bennett: It is happening right now. I don’t have the ability to reach out to that 
person. I guess, and perhaps Rhonda could talk a little bit about having PERS 
ramifications of what used to be allowed was to have somebody off and be able to have 
a contractual employee where we did not have. That has been hindered.  
 
Rhonda Heskett: Yes. Public Employees Retirement System frowns upon contractual 
labor and if we would have somebody as contractual labor we would still end up paying 
the City’s share of PERS. You have to go through a lengthy process to get even that 
contractual person approved through PERS. This Ordinance would allow us to have a 
person in a dual position. Not necessarily both people there day- to- day working, but 
like Mr. Bennett said if somebody is off.  
 
Mr. Tarbert: Would you be able to let Council know when this dual position is in effect? 
How many employees so we can kind of keep a tab on it so we know.  
 
Mr. Bennett: Yes, Absolutely. 
 
Mr. Tarbert: Ok. Thank you. 
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Mr. Foreman: Help me understand. It is a case-by-case basis?  
 
Mr. Bennett: Absolutely. 
 
Mr. Foreman: So who would determine what period of time that it would take place? 
 
Mr. Bennett: Depending upon the employee’s position and their long-term need to be 
not here with the City. We would look at that. 
 
Mr. Foreman: Ok.  
 
Mr. Vincent:  Is there anything else from Council? We are at second reading so all in 
favor of second reading signify by saying aye. All were in favor. None were opposed. 
Mr. Baker was absent. 
 
Motion carries. 
 
Ordinance No. 15-23 - Introduced by Council – An Ordinance providing appropriations 
for use during the fiscal year 2015, and declaring an emergency.  
 
Mr. Vincent: We are at second reading, but Mr. Tarbert do you want to make comment 
on this? 
 
Mr. Tarbert: We had a Ways & Means Committee meeting tonight and it was 
recommended to Council that this Ordinance be passed. I don’t know the 
recommendation was not so much that the readings be waived, but recommend in favor 
of passing this Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Vincent: Thank you Mr. Tarbert. With that I will entertain a motion. 
 
Mr. Tarbert moved for second reading, seconded by Mr. Roberts. 
 
Mr. Vincent:  Is there any discussion?  Hearing none, all in favor of second reading 
signify by saying aye. All were in favor. None were opposed. Mr. Baker was absent. 
 
Motion carries. 
 
Ordinance No. 15-24 – Introduced by Council – An Ordinance authorizing the proper 
City Official to apply for OWDA low interest loan funding, advertise for bids for 
construction of the Linden Draining Project, and enter into contracts with the lowest and 
best bidder.  
 
Mr. Vincent: We are at second reading. 
 
Mr. Roberts moved for second reading, seconded by Mr. Tarbert. 
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Mr. Vincent:  Is there any discussion?  Hearing none, all in favor of second reading 
signify by saying aye. All were in favor. None were opposed. Mr. Baker was absent. 
 
Motion carries. 
 
Ordinance No. 15-25 – Introduced by Council – An Ordinance authorizing the proper 
City Official to advertise for bids and enter into a contract for the 2015 citywide overlays, 
with the lowest and best bidder.  
 
Mr. Vincent: We are at second reading. 
 
Mr. Tarbert moved for second reading, seconded by Ms. Gildow. 
 
Mr. Vincent:  Is there any discussion?  Hearing none, all in favor of second reading 
(interrupted) 
 
Mr. Bennett: If I might. Since this Ordinance is specifically tied to the budget. When you 
all pass the budget then we would have the authority then to go out and actually get 
busy on advertising and accepting bids. For your consideration, if you are comfortable 
with this going forward. I would ask if we could look at waiving these readings because 
that would then start the thirty day clock. The budget is written as an emergency and will 
be effective upon passage. There is a little bit of difference with this one; for your 
consideration. 
 
Mr. Vincent: Ok, thank you Mr. Bennett. 
 
Mr. Tarbert moved to waive the remaining readings and it was seconded by Mr. 
Roberts.   
 
Mr. Vincent:  Is there any discussion on waiving of the readings?  Hearing none, we will 
have roll call vote on waiving of the readings. 
 
Roll call vote on waiving of the readings. 
8 Ayes 
0 Nays 
1 Absent Mr. Mark Baker 
Motion carries.   
 
Mr. Vincent:  I now need a motion for passage. 
 
Mr. Roberts moved for passage, seconded by Mrs. Norman. 
 
Mr. Vincent:  Is there any further discussion?  Hearing none, we will have roll call vote 
for passage. 
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Roll call vote for passage. 
8 Ayes 
0 Nays 
1 Absent Mr. Mark Baker 
Motion carries.  Ordinance is passed. 
 
Ordinance No. 15-17 – Introduced by Council – An Ordinance amending Ordinance 
Number 00-16, which adopted a classification plan for city employees; amending 
Ordinance No. 13-15 (Amended), which authorized a maximum schedule of positions; 
and amending Ordinance No. 13-16 (Amended), which established pay, benefits and 
employment policies for unaffiliated employees. (Third Reading) 
 
Mr. Vincent: We are at third reading. 
 
Mr. Hutcheson moved for third reading and passage, seconded by Mr. Foreman. 
 
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion? Hearing none, we will have roll call vote for 
passage. 
 
Roll call vote for passage. 
8 Ayes 
0 Nays  
1 Absent Mr. Mark Baker 
  
Motion carries.  Ordinance is passed. 
 
TRAFFIC ORDERS 
 None 
 
PRIVATE PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
 
Petition from Mr. Eric Jones, 221 Luck Avenue, Zanesville, Ohio regarding Republican 
Democracy. 
 
Mr. Eric Jones expressed Zanesville has been deprived of Republican Democracy, what 
we have here is tyranny of the majority, and this has been going on for about thirty 
years. An Ordinance was passed back in 1984 changing from Roberts Rules of Order to 
the Ohio Revised Code. You can add this as a stubborn problem for the City. Now a 
question I asked the last time and will ask it again, and just keep going over it, if 
something happens or if something doesn’t happen. How is the ouster maintained? He 
would do a quick accounting, but Mr. Vincent told him he is not allowed to poll the 
Council members. 
 
Mr. Vincent: With that, Mr. Jones, if you would refer to me as the President.  
 
Mr. Jones: Refer to what? 
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Mr. Vincent: Just refer to me as the President. 
 
Mr. Jones: Ok, I can’t understand you.  
 
Mr. Vincent: When referring to me, just refer to me as the President of Council, sir. 
 
Mr. Jones: President of Council, ok. Is there are reason for that request? 
 
Mr. Vincent: Yes, it is part of keeping it from being personalized, from personal attacks. 
 
Mr. Jones: Calling you Mr. Vincent is a personal attack? 
 
Mr. Vincent: That is part of it sir. I have explained it before. 
 
Mr. Jones: So when Ms. Culbertson, when she asks for roll call, she is giving a personal 
attack by calling you by your name?  
 
Mr. Vincent: Mr. Jones you have a history of attacking with offensive words. 
 
Mr. Jones: I have never attacked anybody here.  
 
Mr. Vincent: Please, Mr. Jones. Please continue with your presentation. Ok? 
 
Mr. Jones: What are the rules for the private petition? I have asked for this a number of 
times, Mr. Vincent. You haven’t given them to me yet. You have the paper back there 
that says I get three minutes.  
 
Mr. Vincent: Yes, sir, you do. 
 
Mr. Jones: I get it. You gave me a paper with number, I think it was 139, about records. 
Are those the two rules of a private petition? I will stop right now. I am not in a hurry. 
This has been in effect for thirty years. So if you are going to say what the rules are; you 
have an opportunity. One of your jobs as the presiding officer is to broadcast what the 
rules are for City Council. That is one of your jobs. You had a public hearing there and 
you will announce that and you are supposed to let the community know what the rules 
are. I am asking you. What are the rules?  
 
Mr. Vincent: You have twenty-three seconds.  
 
Mr. Jones: Twenty-three seconds.  
 
Mr. Vincent: Yes. 
 
Mr. Jones: Ok, to put a count to it, there are five of you who have not read the two 
books. That is my interpretation. Three of you have read them, but have disregarded the 
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lessons. One I am not for sure and that is you Mr. Roberts, I am not for sure if you have 
read it or not. I will ask you after the meeting. I am thinking you tried to. 
 
Mr. Vincent: Thank you Mr. Jones. Your time is up. We will move on to Miscellaneous 
and Unfinished Business. 
 
Mr. Jones: Wait a minute. Kept talking and trying to interrupt Mr. Vincent. 
 
Mr. Vincent: Mr. Jones, you are done, thank you. Mr. Jones. Mr. Jones. You are out of 
order. Please sit down. 
 
Mr. Jones: I can't ask for an extension. 
 
Mr. Vincent: Mr. Jones, we go through this each time.  
 
Mr. Jones: Can I ask each time? 
 
Mr. Vincent: No sir, please sit down. 
 
Mr. Jones: OK 
 
Mr. Rogers: Excuse me, President of Council. 
 
Mr. Vincent: If Council wants to speak up and grant you some time, they have that 
opportunity to do that, so with that there is someone from the audience that would like to 
be recognized to speak before Council. He has not filed a petition. If Council would like 
to grant the gentleman a chance to speak please make a motion. Will anyone make a 
motion? Anyone make a motion? Ok, thank you. So, with that sir, no one has made a 
motion for you to speak. So, I can’t allow it. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS AND UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
Mr. Vincent: Does the Administration have anything? Is there anything else from 
Council? 
 
Mr. Tarbert: Mr. Mayor or maybe Ms. Gildow, is the City doing anything to help the 
Seniors Center with the issue that happened out there? 
 
Mayor Tilton: Absolutely. Right now we have their meals on wheels kind of operating out 
of the auditorium to help them out until such time as they, I talked with Ann Combs, the 
Director, this morning and they are still looking to find a kitchen. That is their biggest 
problem right now.  Until they find a kitchen and they can figure out what they are going 
to do. We have been in touch with them every day.  
 
Mr. Tarbert: Ok, thank you. 
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Mr. Vincent: Is there anything else from Council?  
 
Ms. Gildow: May I add to that please. The people on the levy campaign committee meet 
weekly and have done so for a certain length of time. Unfortunately all the planning 
that’s gone into the work so far has been sort of preempted by the ceiling tiles falling 
and the fact that the building, that is rented, is considered unsafe. Ann Combs and her 
staff have done a fabulous job and there has been a great deal of cooperation and 
collaboration by the City and the County. So I feel I speak for the committee in saying 
that we are all very appreciative of the spirit of cooperation. You can’t plan for things like 
this. For those who may be critical, it is not as if the Senior Center has been unaware of 
problems with the building. These are things that they can’t control or pay for. So, 
whatever community support is out there is also appreciated, but right now if it weren’t 
for cooperation from the City and the County the problem would be so much worse.  
 
Mr. Vincent: Is there anything else from Council? I will entertain a motion to adjourn. 
 
Mr. Tarbert moved to adjourn, seconded by Mr. Hutcheson. 
 
Mr. Vincent: All in favor signify by saying aye.  
 
All present were in favor. None were opposed. Mr. Baker was absent.  
Motion carries. 
 
Mr. Vincent: We stand adjourned. Thank you everyone and have a good night. 
 
Meeting adjourned about 7:28 PM. 
 
     
 


